Minutes of Meeting Board of Funeral, Cemeteryand Consumer Services June 27, 2007 - 1000A.M. to 5:00P.M. EmbassySuites Hotel – Lake Buena Vista Resort 8100Lake Avenue 0 rlando, FL 32836

I. Call to 0 rderand Roll Call

M r. Jod y Brandenburg, Vice Chairman, called the meeting to order at 1000am. M s Diana Evans, Executive Director, called the roll:

PRESEN T: Jod y Brand enb urg, Vice-Chairm an Pete Ballas Justin Baxley Powell Helm NancyHubbell Ken Jones Gail Thom as-DeWitt Catherine Zippay

ALSO PRESEN T: Diana Evans, Executive Director Deborah Lourks, Board Counsel Mechele McBride, Department Counsel Elizabeth Teegen, Department Counsel Casia Sinco, Department Counsel James Gellepis, Department Staff LaTonya Bryant, Department Staff Field Staff (Ald on Asher-Orland o)

ABSEN T: Greg Brul nicki, Chairm an Tracy Huggins

Ms Evansdeclared a quorum.

Mr. Chairm an recognized Col. Pete Ballason celebrating his 90th birthd ayon June 26th.

M r. Chairm an also recognized the following industry leaders Kevin Davis, St Pete College Program Director Roy W eim ert, FCCJFuneral Services Program Director Clay Roberson, FFDA President George M organ III, IFDF M ike U selton, FCA

II. Action on the Minutes A. April 11, 2007

M r. Chairm an confirm ed that all Board membershad read the draft of the minutes of the previous Board meeting held on April 11th.

MOTION: Mr. Ken Jonesm oved to adopt the minutes of the meeting. Ms Gail Thom as DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. May 15, 2007 - Teleconference

Mr. Chairm an confirm ed that all Board membershad read the draft of the minutes of the previous teleconference meeting held on May 15th.

MOTION: Mr. Powell Helm moved to adopt the minutes of the meeting. Ms Catherine Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

III. 0 ld Business

A. Application(s) for Funeral Establishment 1. BattsMorturry(Jacksonville)

Ms Evansstated that the application wassubmitted on January 8, 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter wassent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on March 29, 2007. The fingerprint card sfor the principal wassubmitted and returned without criminal history. The funeral establishment passed its inspection on April 11, 2007. The board voted to defer the application on the May 15, 2007 conference call pending additional information. The board had found three different issues concerning the application: 1) Box 13 was unanswered; 2) Clarification of who would provide arrangements for refrigeration and storage; 3) Notification of who the Funeral Director in Charge of the establishment will be. Mr. Batts submitted the additional information on June 9, 2007 to complete the application.

MOTION: Col. Pete Ballasm oved to approve the application. Mr. Jistin Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2. Elder Funeral Home LLC d/b/a Elder Funeral Home (.Jacksonville)

M s Evans stated that the application was submitted on February 15, 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on March 16, 2007. The fingerprint card sfor the principal was submitted and returned without criminal history. The funeral establishment passed its inspection on April 16, 2007. The board voted to defer the application at the May 15, 2007 conference call pending additional information. The board requested clarification of whether the refrigeration and storage would be maintained on site or contracted out to another establishment. Mr. Elder submitted a revision of the application and a copy of the contract from Holmes-Glover-Solom on Funeral Directors on May 15, 2007 to complete the application.

MOTION : Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

IV. DisciplinaryProceedings

A. Richardson Mortuary, DFS Case No. 86764-06 FC

M r. Chairm an stated that this item would be deferred until later in the meeting as M r. Jackson is delayed in traffic.

V. Informal Hearing(s) A. Rickie Vannorren King, DFS Case No. 8459607-FC

M s Mechele Mc Bride stated that the Board would need to open the record in order to begin the Inform al Hearing proceed ing.

Ms Deborah Lourksstated that this applicant was denied licensure because of his answer to the crim inal history question. There is a Notice of Intent to Deny Licensure filed by the Department. The Board is here to discuss is once Mr. King received the Notice of Intent to Deny, he requested an informal hearing before the Board. Basically, what he is here to do is ask the Board to reconsider the denial for licensure on those grounds. If desired to do so, the Board could take testim ony from the Department and Mr. King or allow Mr. King to provide additional information that was not provided.

Ms McBride stated since Mr. King has the burden of proving his entitlement to licensure, as he is the applicant and petitioner, then he will go first in presenting his testim only and evidence. Mr. King has witnesses to speak on his behalf, including his supervisor. Thereafter, the Department will then present its evidence and then the Board could then decide how to proceed.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether the application was forem balmer apprentices hip.

Ms McBride responded yes

Ms Loucksstated that before the proceeding began Mr. King would have to be swom in. Ms Loucks asked that Mr. King raise his right hand. Ms Loucks asked if Mr. King swore to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

Mr. King responded yes

Mr. King stated that he was born and raised in Jacksonville, Florid a before moving to N orth Carolina to attend college at Central Pied mont Community College, where he received an Associates Degree in Hotel Restaurant Management. Mr. King was married and had 2 child ren while there. In 1988 Mr. King moved back to Jacksonville to care for hisailing father. U pon returning, Mr. King worked in restaurant management to care for hisailing father. U pon returning, Mr. King worked in restaurant enrolled in Cosm etology school, where he received a Cosm etology license from the State of Florida.

In 1992, Mr. King'swife wasd iagnosed with a term in al illness causing Mr. King's life to go into turm oil and spin out of control, as he wasstill caring for his father. Mr. King became dependent on drugs with cocaine being his drug of choice, to cope with the situation. In 1993, Mr. King was arrested for the purchase of cocaine, as he bought the drug to support his habit.

In 1997, Mr. King wasarrested for robbery. Mr. King admitsstealing but would like to explain the situation. After being out all night with a friend, another addict, the two went into a store where they were removing the cash for the day. Mr. King and hisassociate grabbed the moneybag and ran. Mr. King washeld by a citizen until the police arrived. Mr. King wasarrested and taken to jail. Mr. King states that was the best and worst day of his life. While in jail, Mr. King had time to think and get his life

back on track, as he enrolled in and completed a drug treatment program while there. This began Mr. King's road to recovery.

In 1997, shortly after being released from jail, Mr. King's wife died, leaving him with 2 children to care for. This task was done solely by Mr. King, as he took care of the children, who have both graduated from college. In 2000, Mr. King recommitted his life to Christ and has become a member of the Greater Church of God by Faith in Jacksonville, FL. After the children grew up and lefthome, Mr. King found him self yearning some thing further so he enrolled at Florida Community College in the Funeral Service Program and graduated with special honors August 10, 2006 After graduation, Mr. King was employed with CL Page Mortuary and passed the National Board examination on December 27, 2006 Mr. King pleaded for the Board to find it in their hearts to granthim licensure in the State of Florida as an embalmer apprentice.

Ms Loucksasked if Ms Page swore the testim onyshe gives would be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

M s Carla Page stated that M r. King first came to her attention through the Florida Community College W ork Experience Program, as he came highly recommended by the coord inator of the program. On September 11, 2006 M r. King became employed by herfirm. Since that time, hismannerism has been professional and he has proved to be honorable, showed compassion and integrity. M r. King has been placed in a level of trust and since the first day has shown no reason not to be lieve in him. M r. King is constantly showing improvement. Given the opportunity, M r. King would be an asset to the funeral profession.

Ms Loucksasked if Dr. Albert Sim pson, Jr. swore the testim onyshe gives would be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

Dr. Albert Sim pson, Jr. stated that previously he was scheduled to be in the panhand le to represent som e other people, but he felt as though this was more important. Previously, a swom letter was submitted to M s M c Bride to be included in the packet. Dr. Sim pson read the letter into record :

"I was confirmed and appointed by the President of the Florida Senate, the Honorable Ken Pruitt and the confirmation committee of the Florida Senate to serve under the directions of the Attorney General, the honorable Bill M cCollum and his staff alone with eighteen other Council members to systematically study the conditions affecting black men and boys, including, but not limited to, hom icide rates arrest and incarceration rates poverty, violence, drug abuse, death rates disparate annual income levels, school performance in all grade levels including post secondary levels and health issues and proposes measures to alleviate and correct the underlying causes of these conditions. I have observed Rickie Vannorren King, Sr. for a period of time in his job related duties at C L Page Mortuary, also where I serve as the mortuary Chaplain. Rickie always displays a quiet and professional demeanor of service with consistency and stability.

I have reviewed his criminal historyfile especially the offenses in question which occurred ten years ago and I am impressed with his endurance and perseverance to overcome the atrocities of crime and enroll and participate in the River Region Human Services Recovery Program in May 23, 1997 and continued in the aftercare phase to become healed and stable; and to complete the prescribed course of instructions at the Florida Community College at Jicksonville in the field of Funeral Services Arts and Funeral Services Sciences also receiving a scaled score of eighty one in the units and content areas of Embalming, Restorative Art, Microbiology, Pathology, Chemistry and Anatom yand also receiving a State License in Cosmetology. Rickie Vannorren King, Sr. has demonstrated that his past, certainly is not evident today and that he is worthy of any fiduriary responsibility if granted the opportunity to serve in the Profession of MortuaryScience as a Professional. I am reminded by the quote of Samuel Johnson that, "Great works are performed not by strength, but perseverance;" Rickie has persevered with a mazing courage and strength, please give him the opportunity in my humble opinion to become approved to practice in this honorable and noble vocation for the great state of Florida "

Dr. Sim pson stated that he meantevery word of his letter from the depths of his heart.

M r. Chairm an questioned how long Dr. Sim pson has personally known M r. King.

Dr. Sim pson responded alm osta year. Dr. Sim pson stated that he is especially honored and thankful that Mr. King "pulled up" 10 years ago and has gotten it right and is trying to become successful and is all doing the necessary thing sto accomplish this

M r. Baxley questioned the reasoning behind M r. King applying for an apprenticeship as opposed to applying for an internship.

Mr. King stated that the application was submitted prior to his completion of school.

M r. Baxley stated that if the Board grants licensure of the apprenticeship, this issue could come up again d uring the internship and also at the time of the ultimate licensure.

Mr. King stated that he was unaware of this and was under the impression if it was resolved now, then he could move on and apply for licensure.

Mr. Helm questioned whether Mr. King attended the Board meeting in St Petersburg.

Mr. King responded no.

Ms McBride questioned whether the Board had any questions for Mr. King's supervisor.

Mr. Chairm an responded no.

Ms McBride stated that the was provided the Notice of Intent to Deny Licensure, the Election of Proceed ings, the information pertaining to Mr. King'scrim inal history, his application for licensure and a copy of the Law Enforcement record sheet which details Mr. King'scrim inal history. The Department does not have any witnesses or any other evidence to present before the Board.

M r. Jones questioned whether M r. King could drop the application for apprentice and submit an application for the internship.

Ms McBride stated that Mr. King would have to apply again and come back before the Board.

MOTION: Ms NancyHubbellm oved to approve the request. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VI. Request(s) for Board Appearance A. Headrick, Brent

Mr. BrentHeadrickasked that the Board reconsider his funeral directors only license and to consider changing that to a funeral directors and embalmers license. Mr. Headrick presented the Board with a packet of information.

Mr. Headrick stated that in January 2006 he applied for a funeral director internship. At that time, Mr. Headrick submitted the application that he believed would allow him to perform all duties of a funeral director, including embalming. The application was approved and Mr. Headrick received his funeral director internship on March 16 2006 Mr. Headrick com pleted his internship under the leadership of Mr. David Broad us, who looked overall the paperwork and approved everything. Mr. Broad us was also under the impression that Mr. Headrick was able to embalm.

Mr. Headrick submitted his 1st quarterly report which included both funerals and embalmings worked. Once that year was over, Mr. Headrick applied for the funeral directors license. Mr. Headrick then took and passed the State exam. Mr. Headrick added that it was not until he called for his license number that he noticed something was wrong as his number was different than the other funeral directors he worked with. Mr. Headrick then contacted the Department and found that he was only licensed to be a funeral director not an embalmer.

Mr. Headrick asked that the Board take into consideration that he has done all the work and paperwork although he was not licensed for it. Mr. Broad us, who supervised Mr. Headrick, submitted a letter of recommendation. Mr. Headrick is in a situation where he is just out of school working a lone in a small firm. Bringing in an embalmer creates a hard ship for the company.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether this is something the Board can legally do.

Ms Loucksstated that basically this would be a waiver of Rule 69K-18.001 that requires submission of an application prior to doing the training. The Board is allowed to waive that Rule if it chooses to do so. Mr. Head rick would have to complete the application and pay the fee. If all the reports submitted meet the requirements of the Rule, the onlymissing would be the application. The Board could grant Mr. Head rick the embalmer license with the condition that he submits the application and the fee.

M s Gail Thom as DeW itt stated that there is a difference in the exam. M s Thom as DeW itt questioned whether M r. Head rick would have to take the exam again if the Board waives the Rule for the internship.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether Mr. Headrick has taken both parts of the National Board exam.

Mr. Head rick responded that both parts were taken in December 2005

 $M\,s$ Thom as DeW itt responded that under Florida $M\,r.$ Head rick actually took the Florida Laws and Rules exam .

Mr. Headrick stated he contacted the Department and was advised that the tests were the same.

Ms Loucksstated that the Rule could be waived if he has metall the other requirements If Mr. Headrick has not met the other requirements the Board could just deny the request and have Mr. Headrick go through the process and red o the training.

Mr. Chaim an questioned whether Mr. Broad uswas present.

Mr. Headrick responded that Mr. Broad uswas unable to attend the meeting.

Col. Ballas questioned what Staff's recommendation is

Ms Evansstated that the Department really did not have a recommendation. It is unfortunate that Mr. Headrick made a mistake but it is unclear how he could make such a mistake as all the correspondence stated funeral director. Ms Evans questioned whether Mr. Headrick did not understand that funeral director did not automatically include embalming or whether he assumed it did.

Mr. Headrick that he assumed it did.

Ms Evansquestioned whether this was covered in Mortuary School.

Mr. Headrick responded no. The application was taken from the internet and David Broad us looked over it.

Ms Evansquestioned whether Mr. Broad uscaught the error.

Mr. Headrick responded no. After receiving the reports the Department never called to advise that Mr. Headrick should not have been embalming so he assumed everything was in order.

Ms Thom as DeWitt questioned where Mr. Head rick received the application from .

Mr. Headrick responded that he got it from the internet.

Ms Thom as DeWitt stated that while reviewing Mr. Head rick's case, she visited the web site and found that the applications are listed closely, but all paperwork submitted by Mr. Head rick relates to funeral directing only.

Mr. Headrick stated that he is aware of this now.

Ms Zippay questioned whether all the requirements have been met.

Ms Loucksstated that the Board would have to review the documentation submitted. The Board is not required to waive the Rule, but would only be allowed to if all the requirements have been met since technically, Mr. Head rick was embalming improperly. In reviewing the documentation submitted, if he had submitted the application and fee in the right order, and all documentation shows that he meets all the qualifications to be issued that license, then the Board could do it. If he ismissing something, then waiving that Rule is not going to helphim.

Ms Thom as DeWitt questioned how many hours Mr. Head rick worked.

Mr. Headrick responded that he was there for a year, 40 hours for 52 weeks Mr. Headrick added that he did the exact same work as the intern prior to him, Jolene Carter. The same quarterly report form swere submitted. All the requirements for the embalmer apprentices hip have been met.

Ms Hubbell questioned whether the Department had an obligation to notify Mr. Head rick that his embalming was not in compliance to his licensure.

Ms Evansstated that this was not noticed when the reports were submitted. Normal procedure is to make sure that we receive a report, file it and when the applicant applies for licensure we ensure we have the information on file. This is such an unusual instance.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether anyone from FCCJ would like to speak on Mr. Head rick's behalf.

Mr. RoyWeimert stated that Mr. Headrick was an excellent student who dideverything he was supposed to do. In facthe was a leader in the class compared to the other students. This situation appears to be just an oversight. Mr. Headrick works for a good firm and was taught well. Mr. Weimert recommended that Mr. Headrick proceed as he has probably met the obligations required. Mr. Headrick is the type of funeral director needed for the 21st Century.

MOTION: Mr. Jonesmoved to approve the request contingent upon receipt of the correct application, pays the fee, files the reports correctly and is placed on probation for a year. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Prevatt J; Clarence E

Mr. Clarence Prevatt stated that he had a heart attack just before Christmas last year and had several surgeries in 2006 In February 2007, Mr. Prevatt had open heart surgery. As a result, the CPA did not receive the information in time. When Mr. Prevatt realized he would be late on filing the renewal, he requested to appear before the Board for extension to have the paperwork com pleted and also for a waiver of the late fee. Mr. Prevatt brought a copy of the financials with him.

Mr. Prevattapologized for notattend ing the last meeting as he did not receive notification as such. Mr. Prevatt states that if he is scheduled to be somewhere, he is usually there. Mr. Prevattre quested that the Board waive the late fee for filing late.

The internal problem has been resolved. Therefore this issue will not occur again.

Ms Evansquestioned how the Board ruled last year.

Mr. Jm Gellepisstated that Mr. Prevatt was placed on the agenda to request a waiver of the late fee schedule, but he was not notified. Therefore he did not attend the meeting. The Board denied the request. Subsequently, the Department senta letter notifying Mr. Prevatt that the financials and late fee were due. Mr. Prevatt then submitted another request to address the Board. Up until now, the Department has not received the financials, but Mr. Prevatt advises that he is prepared to submit them today. The late fee penalty would be \$1000

Ms Evansquestioned whether it was just the financials that were not submitted on time.

Mr. Gellepisresponded yes Only the financials are outstanding.

Mr. Powell Helm questioned whether this decision is only for what happened at the April Board meeting.

Ms Evansresponded yes

Mr. Helm questioned whether Mr. Prevatt was notified of the Aprilm eeting.

Mr. Prevatt responded no.

Mr. Ken Jones questioned whether the Department inad vertently did not notify Mr. Prevatt.

Mr. Gellepisresponded yes

MOTION: Mr. Jones moved to waive the late fee. Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

V II. Application(s) for Funeral Establishment A. Recommended for Approval 1. Elijah Bell's Funeral Services LLC (Laulerdale Lakes)

M s Evans stated that the application was submitted on May 4, 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on May 25, 2007. The fingerprint card sfor the principal was submitted and returned without criminal history. The Funeral Establishment passed its inspection on June 8, 2007.

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2. 0 coee FamilyFuneral and Cremation Chapel Inc (0 coee)

Ms Evansstated that the application was submitted on April 26 2007. The application was complete and did not require a deficiency letter to be sent. The fingerprint card sfor the principals were submitted and returned without criminal history. The Funeral Establishment passed its inspection on May 18, 2007.

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Ms Thomas-DeWittseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

3. Purcell Funeral Home Inc (Bushnell)

Ms Evansstated that the application was submitted on May 18, 2007. The application was complete and did not require a deficiency letter to be sent. The fingerprint card for the principal was submitted and returned without criminal history. The Funeral Establishment passed its inspection on June 13, 2007. The application is recommended for approval pending proof of the closing of the sale from Cheryl Purcell to Roger Beyers

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Consideration

1. Richardson Mortuary(Miami)

Mr. Chairm an stated that this item would be addressed later in the meeting along with the Disciplinary Case.

VIII. Application(s) for Removal Service A. Recommended for Approval

1. Tri CountyMortuaryTransferServices(Jensen Beach)

M s Evansstated that the application was submitted on May 8 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on May 25, 2007. The fingerprint card for the principal was submitted and returned without criminal history. The Removal Service passed its inspection on June 7, 2007.

MOTION: Mr. Helm moved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

IX. Application(s) for Cinerator Facility

A. Recommended for Approval

1. Big Bend Cremation Services LLC (Tallahassee)

Ms Evansstated that the application wassubmitted on May 11, 2007. The application wascomplete and did not require a deficiency letter to be sent. The fingerprint card sfor the principals were submitted and returned without criminal history. The Cinerator Facility passed its inspection on June 8, 2007.

MOTION: Mr. Jonesmoved to approve the application. Col. Ballasseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2. Carriage Team FL (Funeral) LLC d/b/a Lakeland Funeral Home and Crematory

Ms Evansstated that the application was submitted on April 23, 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on June 1, 2007. The fingerprint card sfor the principals were submitted and returned without criminal history. The Cinerator Facility passed its inspection on June 8, 2007.

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley second ed the motion, which passed unanimously.

3. Hodges Family Funeral Home Inc (Dade City)

Ms Evansstated that the application was submitted on April 23, 2007. The application was complete and did not require a deficiency letter to be sent. The fingerprint card sfor the principals were submitted and returned without criminal history. The Cinerator Facility passed its inspection on June 11, 2007.

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

X. Application(s) for Refrigeration Facility

A. Recommended for Approval

1. Tri CountyMorturyTransferServices (Fort Pierce)

M s Evansstated that the application was submitted on May 8 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on May 25, 2007. The fingerprint card for the principal was submitted and returned without criminal history. The Refrigeration Facility passed its inspection on June 7, 2007. **MOTION:** Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Chaim an requested that Mr. King come forward. The Board recommend sthat Mr. King move forward with his concurrent internship application. This is very important.

XI. Application(s) for Direct Disposal Establishment

A. Recommended for Approval

1. Big Bend Cremation Services LLC (Tallahassee)

Ms Evansstated that the application was submitted on May 11, 2007. The application was complete and did not require a deficiency letter to be sent. The fingerprint card sfor the principals were submitted and returned without criminal history. The Direct Disposal Establishment passed its inspection on June 8, 2007.

MOTION: Mr. Jones m oved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley second ed the motion, which passed unanim ously.

XII. Application(s) for Centralized Embalming Facility

A. Recommended for Approval

1. North Florida MortuaryServices (Lake City)

M s Evansstated that the application was submitted on February 6 2007. The application was incomplete when submitted and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant. The deficient item swere returned on May 2, 2007. The finger print card sfor the principals were submitted and returned without criminal history. The Centralized Embalming Facility passed its inspection on May 15, 2007.

MOTION: Ms Hubbell moved to approve the application. Ms Thom as DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XIII. Application(s) to Acquire Control of an Existing CemeteryCompany A. SCI Fumeral Services of Florida, Inc to acquire Rolling 0 aksCemetery(Port St. Lucie)

Mr. Chairm and isclosed his affiliation with SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether this would im pact Mr. Chairm an's decision making ability to render a fair and impartial decision regarding this application.

Mr. Chairm an responded no.

Ms Evansstated that the application was received on May 1, 2007 from SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc., for authority to acquire control via external asset purchase of Rolling Oaks Cemetery. The department noted no deficiencies with the application.

All principals' fingerprint and crim in al history reports were received and reflected no adverse results The applicant has waived the final examination of trust fund sby the Department.

Approval is contingent upon the following:

- 1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale.
- 2. Existing cemetery license returned for cancellation.

The Department recommend sapproval of this application.

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the application with the contingencies Col. Ballas second ed the motion, which passed unanim ously.

XIV. Application(s) for Preneed Sales Agent A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum A

Ms Evanspresented the applicants for approval and requested to make some additions Staff advised on M onday that there was a list in addition to the addend um for various appointing entities and various funeral homes. The list could be deferred to the conference call, but Staff would like to have this resolved today.

Mr. Chairm an questioned whether the list is recommended for approval.

Ms Evansresponded yes

MOTION: Mr. Helm moved to approve the applications on the addend um and the list. Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XV. Application(s) for Preneed License

A. American Burial & Cremation Service, Inc. d/b/a LarryTaylorFuneral and Cremation Services (Punta Gorda)

Ms Evans stated the Department received the application on May 15, 2007. The Department received fingerprint cards and a completed background check revealed no criminal history. The applicant previously held a preneed license that was not renewed for the period beginning July 1, 2004. The renewal application was withdrawn at the December 1 2004. Board meeting due to deficient financial statements

The Applicant's financial statem ents for the period ended December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	= \$1,665,569
Required NetWorth	=\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth	= \$ (212, 149)

Tim Claiborne, the applicant's CPA, has requested Board consideration of the application and has proposed 100% trusting or use of insurance-funded sales to compensate for the deficient networth.

The Applicant proposes use of the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) First Florida Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Estate & Trust Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

Mr. Claibome stated that the Board members received compiled financials. Ms Evans noted that the applicant pulled the application in 2004. This was done so that the applicant could begin making the necessary changes to its preneed accounting. The applicant showed a negative networth and was concerned that he would not be approved, so he with drew the application and begun using FSI's

certificate of authority for selling preneed. At this time, the applicant wishes to regain his certificate of authority by reapplying. The negative networth noted is due to the preneed accounting where the trust a sets are less than the 100% preneed contract liability. The applicant proposes using insurance and /or 100% trusting. The Board has approved this type situation many times

Col. Ballas questioned what the applicant proposes to get rid of the negative networth.

M r. Claib ome stated that this would improve once the applicant begins trusting 100%, a sopposed to 70% trusting, and for insurance. It appears to be a good firm with positive cash flow and ism oving in the right direction.

Ms Hubbell questioned whether there is a one time charge to retained earnings

Mr. Claibome stated this was when he helped the applicant record the preneed a sets and contracts in the rightmanner. This is over the amount of the deficit.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether the applicant has been writing under FSI's certificate of authority.

Mr. Claiborne responded correct.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether there have been any issues

M r. Bill W illiam sstated that FSI has a whole other subsidiary called Trusting Funeral Plans who has its own COA. Prior to allowing anyone to use that license, FSI conducts an indepth review of the financial record stoensure that they are fiscally responsible. FSI feels this is a good firm and there have been no issues

MOTION: Ms Hubbell moved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley second ed the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Hancock Funeral Home Inc (Ft Meade)

Ms Evans stated the Department received the application on February 5, 2007. A deficiency letter was sent by the Department on March 15, 2007. Applicant responded to all deficiencies by April 11, 2007. Fingerprint cards were received by the Department and a completed background check revealed no crim inal history. The Applicant obtained a funeral establishment license on N ovember 29, 2006

The Applicant's financial statem ents as of Feb ruary 28, 2007 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	=\$	0
Required NetWorth	=\$	1Q000
Reported NetWorth	=\$	28,262

The Applicant will use the pre-approved trust and contract form sof the Independent Funeral Directors of Florid a (IFDF) Master Trust Fund .

MOTION: Ms Thomas-DeWittm oved to approve the application. Ms Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

C. Morning GloryFuneral Chapel of St Petersburg (St. Petersburg)

Ms Evansstated the Department received the application on March 23, 2007. No deficiencies were noted on the application. Fingerprint cards were received by the Department and a background check was completed. Applicant obtained a funeral establishment license on April 21, 2006

The Applicant answered "yes" to both Question #1Q. "Has the applicant ever been the subject of any bankrupt y proceed ing or had a judgment filed against it, either present, past or pending?" and Question #15(b), "Has any person subject to disclosure requirements ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regard less of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state of the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below: Any other felony not alread y disclosed under sub paragraph 1, immediately above, which was committed within the 20 years immediately preceding the date this application is submitted.

In response to Question 10, Ms Lisa M. Speights submitted a letter and documentation in reference to a personal bankruptcy filed in July 2005 Ms Speights also provided a letter and detail regarding the disposition of creditor accounts as proof that the bankruptcy was successfully completed and discharged on August 31, 2005

Additionally, in response to Question 15(b), Ms Speights disclosed that in 1990she was charged with fraudulent use of a credit card, felony. All penalties and sanctions have been satisfied in connection with this case and this matter has previously been presented to the Board for consideration of funeral establishment license and was approved.

The Applicant's financial statements as of December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	=\$	0
Required NetWorth	=\$	10000
Reported NetWorth	=\$	53,277

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) First Florida Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Estate & Trust Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

MOTION: Mr. Helm moved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which failed with 4d issenting votes

Ms Hubbell stated that the financial should be incom pliance with GAAP. There are certain thing sthat appear to be discrepancies. There is a total expense for the year, \$6000 in depreciation, yet on the Balance Sheet only \$3000 depreciation expense is shown. Accounts receivable – there is a negative number in the equity section. There are different item sin the Balance Sheet and the Income Statem entitled o not appear to be in com pliance.

Ms Lisa Speights stated that this is her first year in business and it has been a good first year. Ms Speights stated that she would have her accountant to take another look at the numbers Ms Speights requested that the Board defer the application to the next meeting.

Ms Evansquestioned whether the applicant is willing to waive its 90day rights in writing.

Ms Speightsresponded yes

2nd MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to defer the application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION : Mr. Jones questioned whether updated financials would be submitted.

Ms Evansquestioned when the updated financials would be submitted.

Mr. W illiam s questioned when the dead line for the next Board meeting would be.

Ms Evansresponded July 8th.

D. Navano Funeral Homes, LLC (Doral)

Ms Evansstated the Department received the application on March 16 2007. No deficiencies were noted on the application. Fingerprint cards were received by the Department and a completed background check revealed no criminal history. The Applicant obtained a funeral establishment license on August 28, 2006

The Applicant answered "No" to Question #1Q. "Has the applicant ever been the subject of any bankruptcy proceeding or had a julgment filed against it, either present, past or pending?" However, Mr. David Navarro submitted a letter and documentation in reference to a personal bankruptcy filed in 2008 following dissolution of marriage. Additionally, Mr. Navarro provided a letter and detail regarding the disposition of creditor accounts including a notice of discharge of deb tor filed on October 2008. The Applicant's financial statements as of November 3Q, 2006 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	=\$	0
Required NetWorth	=\$	10000
Reported NetWorth	=\$	42,160

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) First Florida Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Estate & Trust Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

Ms Evansquestioned whether Ms Hubbell had an opportunity to review the financials as they do not appear to conform to GAAP.

Ms Hubbell stated that the financials did not conform to GAAP. The applicant does not appear to meet the requirements based on this information.

Mr. W illiam srequested that the application be deferred to the next meeting.

 $M\,s\,Evansquestioned\,whether\,M\,r.\,W$ illiam sis authorized to waive the 90d ayrights on behalf of the applicant.

Mr. William sresponded that the waiver would be submitted in writing today

Ms Evansresponded that the dead line is July 8th.

Ms Hubbell stated that the application asked "Are you and any company with whom you are connected financially solvent", and the applicant answered no.

MOTION: Ms Hubbell moved to defer the application to the next meeting pending receipt of revised financials by July 8th. Ms Thom as DeWitt second ed the motion, which passed unanimously.

E Pinello Funeral Homes, Inc. (Daytona Beach)

Ms Evans stated the Department received the application on April 27, 2007. There were no deficiencies noted by the Department. Fingerprint cards were received by the Department and a completed background check revealed no criminal history. Applicant obtained a funeral establishment license on June 8, 2001. Applicant previously held a Preneed License which expired on July 1, 2006d ue to failure to renew.

The Applicant's financial statem ents for the period ended December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	=\$	71,834
Required NetWorth	=\$	10,000
Reported NetWorth	=\$	55,932

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) First Florida Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Estate & Trust Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

MOTION: Mr. Jonesmoved to approve the application. Col. Ballasseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

F. Professional Funeral Services of N orthwest FL d/b/a Davis W atkins Funeral Home (Ft W alton Beach)

M s Evansstated the Department received the application on April 9, 2007. A deficiency letter wassentby the Department on April 17, 2007. Applicant resolved all deficiencies by June 8, 2007. Fingerprint cards were received by the Department and a completed background check revealed no criminal history. The Applicant obtained a funeral establishment license on May 15, 2007. Additionally, Applicant took over existing preneed contracts in the amount of \$22,753 from Ward-McDonald Memorial Co., Inc. d b a Panhand le Direct Cremation Services in Defuniak Springs Ward-McDonald is not renewing its Preneed License for the July 1, 2007–June 30, 2008 renewal period.

The Applicant's financial statem ents for the period ended December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	=\$	22,753
Required NetWorth	=\$	10000
Reported NetWorth	=\$	1Q318

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) First Florida Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Estate & Trust Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

Ms Evansstated that this is a simple financial statement. However, it does not delineate current assets and current liabilities. They are all sort of lum ped together.

Mr. W illiam sresponded that the current maturities are reflected in the Liability Section.

Ms Evansstated the assets are all grouped. The Current Maturities does not include the assets Technically, it does not meet GAAP requirements

MsHubbell confirmed this

Mr. W illiam srequested that the application be deferred to the next meeting.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether Mr. Williams was a uthorized to speak on behalf of the applicant and waive the 90day rights

Mr. William sresponded yes

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to defer the application to the next meeting. Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

G. Purcell Funeral Home, Inc. d/b/a Purcell Funeral Home (Bushnell)

Ms Evansstated the Department received the application May 16 2007. Purcell Funeral Home is currently licensed under the sole ownership of Cheryl Purcell. On April 25, 2005 the Board approved the transfer of the license from Mr. J Lane Purcell, former sole proprietor and 100% owner. This application is submitted to reflect the incorporation of Purcell Funeral Home.

The Applicant's financial statem ents as of December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

Preneed Contracts	=\$1,494,892
Required NetWorth	=\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth	=\$1,588,283

The Applicant will be using the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) First Florida Trust agreement and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

The Department recommend sapproval of this application.

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Ms Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

***ITEMS TAKEN OUT OF OR DER ***

IV. DisciplinaryProceedings A. Richardson Mortury, DFS Case No. 86764-06 FC

Ms Casia Sinco stated that this was initiated with a Notice of Intent to Cease and Desist. One of the Department's inspectors, upon conducting the annual inspection, noted that the funeral home was operating under a different name than its original name and had also changed ownership and had been operating under the new ownership for quite a while. Mr. Dwight Jackson, the FDIC, and Richard son Mortuary, which is what they are now called, hold a license under Richard son Funeral Home and are represented by counsel. The Department has been in negotiations with Richard son Mortuary and with

the ir counsel and have come up with a Settlem ent Agreem ent to take care of the Notice of Intent to Issue the Cease and Desist, which was issued by the Department in order to stop the unlicensed change of ownership and name change. The Settlem ent Agreem ententails the payment of an administrative fine in the amount of \$500 and with the condition that Richard son Mortuary would obtain licensure as a funeral establishment within 30 days from the date of entry of the Consent Order, which would be issued to day. Richard son Mortuary is up for consideration of the ir application for licensure to day as well.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether Mr. Jackson is represented by counsel.

Ms Sinco responded yes Counsel was not present as he had a prior engagement in California that he could not change.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether Mr. Jickson had any objection with the Board proceeding without his counselbeing present.

Mr. Jickson responded no.

Ms Sinco stated that the Department requests approval of the Consent Order based on the settlement stipulation, which would take care of the Notice of Intent to Issue the Cease and Desist that Department filed against Richard son Mortuary.

M r. Jckson stated that he is a 3^d generation funeral director. The issue came about as a result of a law suit that some one filed against him, which he has claimed victory to. M r. Jickson stated that he was unaware that there were 2 different names as they have operated under the same name for alm ost eighty years

M s Sinco stated that after the Department filed the Notice of Intent to Issue the Cease and Desist, Mr. Jackson and Richard son Mortuary did file an application fairly quickly after receiving the notice.

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to approve the order. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

B. Recommended for Consideration 1. Richardson Mortury (Miami)

Ms Evansstated that the applicant answered "Yes" to Section 6 in Adverse Licensing History Questions, question (d): Are you currently to your knowledge under investigation by any regulatory or law enforcement authority in Florid a or any other state or jurisdiction in regard to alleged misconductor incompetence in the performance of work under a death care industry license?

The applicant is currently under a cease and desist order issued by the Department. Richard son Mortuary was form erly owned by Mrs Artie Richard son until she passed away and it was taken over by Mr. Dwight Jackson. Mr. Jackson submitted a change of ownership application on January 31, 2007. The applicant submitted fingerprint card sand they were returned with no criminal history. The Funeral Establishment passed its inspection on June 13, 2007.

MOTION: Ms Thom as DeWittm oved to approve the application. Ms Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XV I. Application(s) for Preneed License Branch A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum B

Ms Evanspresented the application(s).

MOTION: Mr. Jonesmoved to approve the application(s). Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XV II. Preneed License Renewals A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum C*

Ms Evanspresented the application(s).

Mr. Baxleyd isc losed his affiliation with Belleview Funeral Home, Hiers Funeral Home Inc, Hiers Mem orial Chapel Inc and Highland Mem orial Park Association Inc.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether this would im pact Mr. Baxley's decision making ability to render a fair and impartial decision regarding this application.

Mr. Baxley responded no.

Ms Thom as DeW itt disclosed her affiliation with Gail-Wynn Mortuary, Inc.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether this would im pact Ms Thom as DeWitt's decision making ability to render a fair and impartial decision regarding this application.

Ms Thom as DeW itt responded no.

Mr. Chairm and isclosed his affiliation with SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc.

Ms Loucksquestioned whether this would im pact Mr. Chairm an's decision making ability to render a fair and impartial decision regarding this application.

Mr. Chairm an responded no.

MOTION: Ms Hubbell moved to approve the application(s). Col. Ballasseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Denial – See Addendum D*

Ms Evanspresented the application(s).

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to deny the application(s). Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

C. Recommended for Consideration - See Addendum E*

?? A.M. Seigler Funeral Home, P.A. (Mulberry)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem entsset forth in Rule 69K-50016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 567,708
Required NetWorth:	\$ 60,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ 2,119

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement identifies 100% of all outstanding preneed sales as insurance funded. In response to a Department deficiency notice, on June 15, 2007 the Licensee submitted a letter requesting consideration based upon the value of the real estate and property.

An independent appraiser's letter regarding the value of the real estate as of April 23, 2007 estimates the "asis" market value of the property as \$560,000 The "as complete" market value as of the anticipated date of completion, 0 c tober 23, 2007 is \$825,000 The total value of fixed assets less depreciation on the balance sheet is \$123,458.

Mr. Alan Mark Seigler stated that he 100% owner of AM Seigler Funeral Home. Mr. Seigler stated that it should be Inc., but the Department's record sstill reflect P.A. Mr. Seigler added that there is still some confusion regarding the owner. Mr. Seigler's father passed away 2 years ago and he has submitted several requests to have this changed.

Mr. Chairm an questioned whether Mr. Seigler filed a change of ownership.

Mr. Seigler responded that he had done so twice and made three personal phone calls

Mr. Baxley questioned whether the addition would be a large one.

M r. Seigler stated that it would not but a large addition. Currently the process is on hold, but there will be an extensive cosmetic refurb ishment.

MOTION: Ms Hubbell moved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

?? Bevis Colonial Funeral Home, Inc. (Tallahassee)

Ms Evansstated the above Licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

 $\label{eq:Financial} Financial statem entrequirem ents for preneed license, Rule 69K-5.0016(2) - intangible assets/sufficient liquid assets to satisfy current liabilities$

Financial Statem entsfor the period ended December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

Total Preneed Contracts\$ 1,641,207Required NetWorth:\$ 100,000Reported NetWorth:\$ 185,615

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement id entifies \$1,305,244 of outstanding contracts as insurance-funded. The Licensee's balance sheet id entifies N on-Current/O ther Assets (intangible) as \$779,278,

including a \$200,000 note receivable from a stockholder. In addition, \$100,000 is included in Current Assets as Contribution to Capital Receivable. It is not clear if the receivables are from the same stockholder and if the \$100,000 contribution has been made. Current Assets total \$175,962 (including the \$100,000 receivable), with Cash consisting of \$2,261. Current Liabilities total \$293,738. The Licensee's current (liquidity) ratio (current assets current liabilities) is .60 Cum ulative Retained Earnings on the income statementare (\$195,395).

M r. John Rud olph stated that the receivables are from the same stockhold er and the \$100000 contribution was made.

MOTION: Col. Ballasm oved to approve the application. The motion failed, as there was no second.

Ms Hubbell questioned why the applicant would list a Contribution to Capital Receivable on the Balance Sheet as an asset.

Mr. Rud olph responded that the applicant paid \$100,000 to pay down some debts. The applicant chose not to take that as a payment on the note.

Ms Hubbell questioned whether it should be listed under Paid In Capital instead of an asset on the books

Mr. Rul olph stated that he is not an accountant and the applicant's accountant is not present. There is a positive networth that exceed sthe amount required by Statute. It appears to be a GAAP statement. The applicant has been doing 100% trusting for insurance funded for the last few years

Mr. Chaim an questioned whether the applicant would continue trusting 100%.

Mr. Rul olph stated he would have to speak with the applicant because they meet the requirements for a preneed license. There may be questions regard ing the financial statements that have not been asked of the applicant. Mr. Rul olph questioned whether the Board would delay the motion until he speaks with the applicant.

Ms Hubbell stated that there appears to also be an issue of whether the applicant can meet their liabilities as they have \$2,261 and owe \$293,738. There appears to be some problem sthere.

Mr. Chairman stated that the item would be deferred until later in the meeting.

?? Boynton Memorial Chapel, LTD (Boynton Beach)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem ents set for thin Rule 69K-50016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 2,457,821
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ (1,483,663)

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement identifies trust principal as \$1,853,259 and accumulated interest as \$214,791. The Licensee submitted a letter with the renewal statements acknowledging the

deficient financials requesting consideration based upon the value of the real estate and property. Notes and Loans Payable reflect \$2,570,000 for Real Estate Mortgages The Licensee's current (liquid ity) ratio (current assets current liabilities) is 1.35.

An independent appraiser's letter regarding the value of the real estate as of N ovember 19, 2006 estimates the market value of the property as \$3,540,000 The value of the real estate owned on the balance sheet is \$1,940,395, less \$656,490 accumulated depreciation, for a total of \$1,283,905.

The Licensee was approved by the Board under the same circum stances for the July 1, 2006 renewal.

Mr. Stom et Norem stated that he appears before the Board each year, except last year, and a pologized for not attending that meeting. The Board still approved the application in his absence. This is probably Mr. Norem 's 10th appearance for the same issue, which is based on the real estate. It was purchased in 1979 and it has been depreciated out since. Recently, major remodeling was done to half of the building to add a crematory and the refrigeration facilities. All of the land scaping and parking lots were red one. It looks like a brand new building and the appraisal reflects this. Also, two properties were added. It is all in the name of the funeral home and the property isowned by the funeral home.

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

?? Buston Funeral Home, Inc.(O keechobee)

Ms Evansstated the above Certificateholder is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem entsset forth in Rule &K-5.0016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 1,296605
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ 27,271

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement identifies \$737,387 of the outstanding contracts as insurance funded and \$559,218 as trust funded. Trust principal is \$279,977 and trust interest is \$25,965. The Licensee's current (liquidity) ratio (current assets current liabilities) is .35. Cum ulative Retained Earnings on the income statement are (\$232,781).

In response to a notice of deficiency, the Licensee states that in the past few years it suffered 100% losses of its two funeral homes due to hurricanes, which required moving into modular homes for a time until their recent move into a new building. The letter states that one insurance settlement has been signed and a suit brought against the company for not paying in a timely manner. The other settlement is being processed and is expected to be for approximately \$1,000,000. The Licensee requests Board consideration based on these circum stances and on its past history of compliance and approvals.

Mr. Paul Buxton stated that this is definitely an isolated incident. Buxton Funeral Home has been a viable funeral home since August 1980and has never had a deficiency as the applicant has always been compliant. During Hurricane Frances, the main funeral home was hit hard. Then Hurricane Gene, which tore the roof off and a tornad o went through the building. This left the funeral home 100% lost of both structure and content. In the process of recovery, the applicant operated for 2.5 years in three single wide m od ular build ing s At the time of the Hurricanes, Buxton Funeral Hom e wasd oing a pproxim at ely 85% of the market share. Then Hurricane W ilm a destroyed their funeral hom e in M oorehaven 100%, structure and content. The Moorehaven claim, according to Insurance Recovery of America, hasbeen settled. However, the applicant has not yet received fund sasthiswas just in the last couple weeks. The bad date claim for failure to pay in a timelymanner is currently being filed by counsel for the applicant. The O keechobee claim was a magnanim ousclaim that became very complicated. Due to the multitule of claim sthat the adjusters were dealing with, it appeared that the applicant was constantly placed on the back burner. In January 2006 Mr. Buxton suffered a hem orthagic stroke and was paralyzed on the right side. At that time, an insurance recovery com pany was hired to hand le the claim s. The in house accountant prepared documents that were presented to the Board at the meeting. The applicant moved into a new build ing the beginning of December and have alread y 2 m onths ahead of last year. From 2004 to present, the scale is growing upward and the applicant is recovering. Buxton Funeral Home sustained itself without receipt of the insurance settlements. The representatives from FSI, FFDA and /or IFDF would attest to the previous com pliance and intent to rectify this situation, as the applicant is creditable.

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the application. Ms Hubbell second ed the motion, which passed unanim ously.

?? Carthage Chapel Funeral Home, Inc. (Jacksonville)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem entsset forth in Rule @K-5.0016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 915,456
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ 56996

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement identifies 100% of outstanding sales as insurance-funded contracts The Licensee's current (liquidity) ratio (current assets current liabilities) is .88.

In a letter dated May 24th Mr. Kenneth Peele Jr., President, states that he agrees to subord in at a note receivable from the funeral home for \$5,561 to helpfulfill the networth requirement. He has also submitted a Duval County Property Appraiser's market valuation for a property at another location to be held a scollateral to fulfill the funeral home networth. The assessed market value of the property is \$54,234. It appears Mr. Peele hold sthe ownership of this property personally.

 $M\,s\,$ Evansquestioned how would the property that $M\,r$. Peele is suggesting to be held a scollateral be collateralized .

Ms Loucksstated that it does not appear that the Department could use this house as collateral. Ms Loucks questioned whether Mr. Peele had tried to get a loan using the house as collateral or a note.

Mr. Kenneth Peele Fresponded no. This is other property not a personal house.

Ms Evansquestioned whether it is personally owned by Mr. Peele.

Mr. Peele responded yes It is rental property.

Ms Zippaystated that if the Board approves it with this property, there is nothing preventing the applicant from selling the property after the approval.

 $M\,r$. Peele questioned whether the Board would accept awritten statement indicating that the property would not be sold .

 $M\,s$ Zippaystating that would not be the same as putting a mortgage on the property that would prevent it from being sold .

Mr. Peele stated that he is 100% insurance funded.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether Mr. Peele planstomaintain 100% insurance funded.

Mr. Peele responded yes

Ms Evansstated that the Board could request that Mr. Peele accept a restriction to his preneed to maintain the policy of only using insurance funded.

Mr. Chairm an questioned whether Mr. Peele would accept that stipulation.

Mr. Peele responded yes

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to approve the application with the stipulation of insurance funding only. Mr. Jonesseconded the motion, which passed with one dissenting vote.

?? CEP Investment, Inc. d/b/a Prevatt Funeral Home (Hulson)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

0 n March 5, 2007 the Department received the R-1 Renewal Application with renewal fee and the R-3 Renewal Statement, which identifies the following:

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 1,980,103
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$?

\$1,588,895 of the outstanding preneed sales is insurance-funded. Principle balance in the preneed trust fund is \$357,761.

The licensee's last fiscal year end date was December 31, 2006 In accordance with Chapter 497.453(5), Florida Statutes financial statements for preneed license renewal are due within 3 m on the of the after the end of the licensee's fiscal period, or by April 1, 2007.

0 n March 15, 2007 the Department received a letter from Mr. Clarence E. Prevatt, J., ad vising the Department that due to health problem 5, he was unable to deliver documents to the accountant in order to prepare financial statements in a timely manner.

At the April 11, 2007 Board meeting the licensee requested an extension of time for filing the financial statement and waiver of the penalty for late filing. The request was denied by the Board.

The Department issued a deficiency notice on April 30, 2007 notifying the Licensee that the financial statements had not been received. On May 18, 2007 the Department received a resubmission of the letter requesting consideration. As of June 18, 2007, the financial statements had not been received.

For the previous two renewal periods, the Licensee submitted documentation from the Pasco County Property Tax Collector on the assessed value of the land and building. The Board approved renewal for the period through June 3Q 2007 upon the condition that all trust-funded contracts written during the license period shall continue to be trusted at 100%. The Licensee was allowed to continue to sell insurance-funded preneed contracts. The licensee is requesting approval under the same conditions.

Mr. Prevattbroughta copy of the financials to the meeting.

Ms Evansstated that the Board would not be able to review the financials during the meeting.

Mr. Prevatt stated that he could prepare the financials by the end of the meeting.

Ms Evansstated that the item could not be deferred as it is the expiration of a license.

Mr. Jones questioned the financials.

Mr. Prevatt stated that last year's deficit was \$92,717.55. The applicant used Pasco County Tax statement valued a tover \$400,000 This was used to cover the deficit. The applicant is trusting 100%. This year's deficit is only \$11,374 and the applicant is presenting the Pasco County Ad Valorem Tax assessment of \$545,947. The real estate should be enough to cover the deficit.

Mr. Chaim an questioned the reported networth.

Mr. Prevatt presented a copy of the financials.

Ms Evansstated that the networth for December 31, 2005 was (\$92,717.55). This year it has been reduced to (\$11,37407). Ms Evans questioned what the applicant has been doing to improve the networth.

Mr. Prevatt stated that he has increased his capital contribution.

Ms Michele Arguin questioned whether the Board would approve the application contingent upon review of the financial statement by staff and the continuance of 100% trusting.

Mr. Helm questioned whether Ms Evanscould review the financials now.

Ms Evansstated that it is a com pilation. There is no engagem ent letter.

M s Arguin questioned if M r. Prevatt were to submit an official copy with the compilation statement and the advalorem taxes by June 30th whether the Board would approve the application contingent upon review by staff.

Ms Evansstated that staff would review it once it is received.

Mr. Prevattresponded that he would submit the information once it was put together and stapled.

MOTION: Mr. Jones moved to approve the application contingent upon acceptable financials and the continuance of 100% trusting. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

?? Lanier Funeral Home, Inc. (Lakeland)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem ents set forth in Rule &K-5.0016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 668,434
Required NetWorth:	\$ 80000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ (309, 659)

The Licensee's current (liquid ity) ratio (current a sets current liabilities) is .36 Cum ulative Retained Earning son the income statement are (\$360,659).

In response to a notice of deficiencies, the licensee submitted a letter dated May 18th requesting consideration based upon the fairmarket value of the real estate and property. A Polk County Property Taxd ocum entas of October 7, 2005 estimates the market value of the property for 2006 as \$886,690. The value of property and equipment on the balance sheet (less depreciation) is \$286353. The licensee requests Board consideration based on the estimated fair value of the property to meet the minimum net worth requirement. The Licensee states it also intend sto subord inate the Mortgage payable of \$287,464, thus removing it from the Liability section of the balance sheet. The Department notes that subord ination would not remove the item as a long-term liability, but means it would be paid last. Only if the note is forgiven can it be treated as a contribution to capital.

MOTION: Ms Hubbell moved to approve the application. Mr. Jonesseconded the motion, which failed with 4d issenting votes

Mr. W illiam sstated that the financials were submitted last year in the exact same circum stances as they are this year and the Board voted overwhelm ingly to approve those. This is the exact same situation of others that have been approved today. Mr. W illiam snequested that the Board reconsider this application. The applicant is going to take the mortgage out of the business' name and put it into the individual's name.

Mr. Baxley questioned the preneed.

Mr. Mike Lanier stated that the preneed started outbeing trust only. Then they went to trust insurance and now they have gone to strictly trusting 100%. As far as the indebted ness to the bank, that was something where stockholders were buying out other stockholders. It was meant to be a personal loan to the stockholders and not to the corporation. This will become a personal debt and not a corporate debt.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether the applicant would be willing to accept the stipulation of remaining 100% trusted.

Ms Zippay questioned when the mortgage would become a personal loan rather than a corporate loan.

Mr. Lanier stated that the balloon payment has recently become due and has been renegotiated. The applicant is currently changing banks and is unsure whether this would happen now or in the near future.

 $M\,s\,Zippa\,ys$ tated that this was need to be done at the time the Lanier's talk with their lender rather than afterward s

Mr. Lanier stated that he is unsure whether that was thought of in advance or not. Everything is based on his parents' property.

 2^{nd} MOTION: Mr. Jones moved to approve the application with the stipulation of 100% trusting. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed with 1 d issenting vote.

BREAK 12:000-12:200

M r. Chairm an recognized the President of Florida Morticians Association, M r. Bernard Mitchell and Vice President Lawrence Epps

?? Machriste, Inc. (Panama City)

Ms Evans stated the above Certificate holder is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem entsset forth in Rule &K-5.0016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 3,898,394
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ 18,173

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement identifies \$3,014,285 of the outstanding contracts a sinsurance funded and \$884,109 a strust funded. Trust principal is \$604,798 and trust interest is \$81,826

In a letter dated May 3Q 2007 the Licensee requests the renewal be approved subject to prior conditions plus proposing pledging the equity in land owned in Panama City. An appraisal report as of January 8, 2002 was attached. The Board approved renewal for the current license period upon the condition that the Licensee submit quarterly financial statements that all trust-funded contracts written during the period be trusted at 100%. The Licensee's current (liquidity) ratio (current assets current liabilities) is 1.43.

MOTION: Mr. Jones m oved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed with 1 d issenting vote.

?? Molico, Inc. d/b/a: David-Russell Funeral Home (Lakeland)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

0 n May 2, 2007 the Department issued a notice of deficiency regarding incomplete responses on the renewal statement, including disciplinary action information. In response, on June G^h the Licensee submitted a copy of a consent order dated March 28, 2007 between the Department and the funeral home. The consent order findings detailed various operational deficiencies at the funeral home e and failure to

m ake tim elypaym entsto the Regulatory and Preneed Funeral Contract Consum er Protection Trust Fund s

In the Settlem ent Stipulation, the Licensee agreed to make timely payments and present quarterly proof of payments to the fund sto the Division's Tam pa office. The Licensee was assessed a \$2,000 administrative fine and placed on probation for a period of sixm on the fine was paid on April 4th.

There are no outstanding deficiencies for the preneed license renewal application.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 311,226
Required NetWorth:	\$ 40,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ 332,605

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the application. Ms Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

?? Quattlebaum Funeral Home, Inc. d/b/a: Quattlebaum Funeral & Cremation Services (West Palm Beach)

Ms Evansstated the above licensee is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet the Financial Requirem entsset forth in Rule 69K-5.0016F.A.C.

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 2,413,760
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ (614,679)

The December 31, 2006Renewal Statement identifies insurance funded contracts outstanding as \$372,357 of. The trust principal is \$1,388,247 and interest \$187,654. The Licensee's current (liquid ity) ratio (current a seets ć urrent liabilities) is 5.43.

Mr. G. EarlQ uattlebaum, holder of a note receivable in the amount of \$770,642 from Q uattlebaum Funeral Home, Inc., submitted an agreement subord inating the payment of that note to the extent that the funeral home requires additional fund snot generated from income from operations to fulfill the commitment to the preneed trust. Personal financial statements for G. Earland Phyllis Quattlebaum have also been submitted in this regard.

Mr. W illiam stated that the Board has approved this application for the past 3 or 4 years in alm ost the identical form at Mr. Quattlebaum has subord in a ted this note and the Board has always given approval in the past.

Mr. Chaim an questioned whether there were any changes in the condition of this situation.

Mr. W illiam stated that other than the fact that Mr. Quattlebaum passed away a couple of weeks ago, yes The reality of it is that the note he subord in ated belongs to his living trust. Mr. Quattlebaum signed that as a PR of that living trust, so it still carries forward. The trust itself is the hold er of the actual note.

MOTION: Mr. Jones m oved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed with 1 d issenting vote.

?? Stephen R. Baldauff FamilyFuneral Home & Crematory, Inc. (Deltona)

Ms Evansstated the above license renewal is recommended for Board consideration based on the following:

Does not meet m in im um networth requirem ents of Rule 69K-5.0016(3).

Total Preneed Contracts	\$ 2,158,440
Required NetWorth:	\$ 100,000
Reported NetWorth:	\$ (358,467)

The renewal statement identifies \$2,004,561 of outstanding preneed sales as insurance-funded. Trust principal balance is \$132,532. The Licensee's current (liquidity) ratio (current assets current liabilities) is .96

A deficiency notice was sent on May 9, 2007 notifying the Licensee that the preneed license renewal financial statements did not meet the required minimum networth of \$100,000 0 n June 19, 2007 the Department received a letter from Mr. Kevin Hazlip, accountant, explaining the Licensee's financial position and requesting approval conditioned upon continued 100% trusting and sales of insurance-funded contracts only.

M r. Kevin Hazlip stated that M r. Johnson is requesting that conditions are continued, 100% trusting or insurance-funded. Since M r. Johnson has taken over from M r. Baldauff, the examinations have been clean and M r. Johnson has had no punitive measures. The negative networth that does exist as a result of the treasury stock transaction has been reduced. In fact, M r. Johnson has added \$317, 000 worth of net worth since he has taken over. M r. Johnson is making progress in reducing the networth and is doing a good job of running the business. The good will has been evaluated at \$940,000. If the good will was brought up to current value on the books, it would add an additional amount of networth so that there would be a positive amount of \$323,000. In 2004, at the Board's request since the real property of the corporation is held m yM r. Johnson personally, M r. Johnson signed a guarantee agreement with that to the Department. M r. Johnson has done various thing sto ensure this and would continue to request the Board's consideration in that he would continue to trust 100% and sell insurance.

Mr. Jones questioned whether the guarantee stays in place.

Mr. Hazlip stated that it has not been rem oved and there was no end date on it when submitted to the Department in 2004

Ms Hubbell stated that she did not receive a current balance sheet or income statement.

Mr. Hazlip stated that Ms Hubbell was looking at the evaluation of the good will.

Ms Evansquestioned whether the financials were submitted.

Mr. Hazlip stated that the applicant has a September yearend, so the financials would have been submitted back in December.

Mr. Gellepisstated that the financials should have been included in the packets

MOTION: Mr. Benessmoved to approve the application conditioned upon continued 100% trusting and / or sales of insurance-funded contracts only. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed with 1 dissenting vote.

ITEM PREVIOUSLY DISCUSSED

?? Bevis Colonial Funeral Home, Inc. (Tallahassee)

Mr. Rul olph stated that the applicant agrees to continue trusting 100% and insurance funded.

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to approve the application. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

D. Expirations – See Addendum F*

Ms Evanspresented the application(s).

XV III. Application(s) to Become a Training Facility

- A. And erson Funeral Hom e (Fort Myers)
- B And erson Funeral Home of Lehigh Acres (Fort Lauderdale)
- C. Bergen Funeral Service, Inc (Naples)
- D. Blount, Curry & Roel Funeral Hom es & Cem eteries (Tam pa)
- E. Blount & Curry Funeral Hom e Carrollwood Chapel (Tam pa)
- F. Garden of Memories Funeral Home Cemetery (Tampa)
- G. Naples Funeral Home, Inc. (Naples)
- H. Sarah L. Carter's Funeral Home, Inc. (Acksonville)
- I. Sarah L. Carter's Funeral Home, Inc (Jacksonville)

Mr. Baxley questioned the whether the numbers presented are within the few months indicated in "range of date."

Ms Evansresponded yes

Mr. Helm stated that there were no numbers for funeral directing listed for Anderson Funeral Home of Lehigh Acres and the applicant is applying for funeral directing and embalming.

MOTION (B only): Col. Ballas moved to approve the application(s) pending verification of the funeral directing count. Mr. Jones second ed the motion, which passed unanim ously.

MOTION (A, C-D: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the application(s). Ms Thomas-DeWitt second ed the motion, which passed unanimously.

XIX. Application(s) for Florida Laws and Rules Examination

A. Recommended for Approval - Addendum G

- 1. Funeral Director and Embalmer-Internship
 - a. Arcelay, Tarynne T
 - b. Ardon, DaisyM
 - c. Bedenbaugh, Aimee M
 - d. Bleicher; MaryB

- e. Clark, Andrew D
- f. Exans, Jason P
- g. Janvier; Joanna
- h. Mc Govern, Sara A
- i. Mitchell, Kara L
- j. Stevenson, Patricia A
- 2. Funeral Director and Embalmer-Endorsement
 - a. Chapman, Jb B
 - b. Hughes, BobbyR
 - c. 0 m; Alan G
 - d. Spears, George A
 - e. Sponaugle, HarryE
 - f. Staley, Benjamin M
 - g. Vieira, ChristopherD
 - h. Vieira, Isabel M
 - i. Watts, JeffreyK
- 3. Funeral Director Internship
 - a. Pechacek, Lauren Noel

Ms Evanspresented the applicant(s) for the Florida Lawsand Rules Exam.

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the application(s). Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

DISCUSSION: Ms Patricia Stevenson questioned what it is she would be allowed to do as she has not com pleted an internship in Florida. Ms Stevenson was previous licensed in Florida, but her license lapsed. Ms Stevenson questioned whether she would have to work in a facility as an intern prior to taking the exam or would she be able to work as a funeral director.

Mr. Chairm an questioned whether Ms Stevenson applied for a concurrent funeral director and embalmer.

Mr. Helm stated that he thought this issue was resolved at the meeting in Deerfield Beach.

Ms Stevenson stated that her husband was discussed at that meeting and this time she speaking on her own behalf. Ms Stevenson stated that she really did not need to do an internship. She only needed to take the exam, but there was nothing on the application to indicate this.

Mr. Chaim an questioned how long it has been since Ms Stevenson served her internship.

Ms Stevenson responded that her internship was served in Missouri. Ms Stevenson had been a FDIC in Florida and worked in Florida until running into some com plications with funeral services at which time she decided she no longer wanted to work in the profession. Ms Stevenson stated that she has been approached by a gentlem an who she feels is sincere to the families and would like to work for him again. Ms Stevenson stated that she has passed the National Board Exam but is unsure what she is permitted to do prior to taking the Florida Laws and Rules Exam.

Ms Loucksstated if the Board ismaking an approval of an intern license then Ms Stevenson would only be able to do what is allowed of an intern. Ms Stevenson would have to work under the supervision of a

licensed funeral director or embalmer and would not be able to work outside the scope of the internship license.

M s Stevenson questioned whether she would be able to work at a funeral hom e without a training facility.

Mr. Chairm an responded no.

Ms Stevenson questioned how this would affect her taking the Laws and Rules Exam.

M r. Chaim an stated if M s Stevenson's license expired then she would have to go through the process of filing for a new license and would have to serve the internship and pass the law exam.

 $M\,s$ Stevenson stated that when she contacted the Department, she was advised that the only thing she would need to do was pass the law exam .

Ms Evansstated that this is confusing as Ms Stevenson applied for an internship.

Ms Stevenson stated that this is the same situation her husband was in. Upon applying, there was no space on the paperwork other than the internship or apprentices hip.

Mr. Baxleystated that he recalls the discussion. There was no form that exactly metwhat Ms Stevenson was applying for which is essentially neither licensure by endorsement or internship. It is actually relicensure of an expired license that has not been renewed.

Mr. Kevin Davisstated that, in past history when licenses have gone null and void, since Ms Stevenson has a lread yserved an internship in Florida and have taken the National Board Exams, she should have just applied for a funeral director and embalmer license, which would give heraccess for the exam.

Ms Stevenson stated that she applied for what she was told to apply for.

Mr. Chairman stated that the Board would direct Ms Stevenson to apply for a funeral director and embalmer license. Mr. Chairman stated that the fee should be applied to the new application.

Ms Evansstated that could not be done.

Ms Stevenson stated that this is confusing since she has done what the Department ad vised her to do. Ms Stevenson stated that no one told her to just apply for the funeral director and embalmer license.

Ms Evansstated that she could not respond to that as she was not purveyed to the conversation nor does she know what was presented. Ms Evans questioned whether Ms Stevenson was licensed in Florida, not another state.

Ms Stevenson responded that she was licensed in Florida and another state. Ms Stevenson previously took that Laws and Rules exam in Florida and worked as a funeral director in Florida.

Mr. Jones questioned whether Ms Stevenson still hold sa license in another state.

Ms Stevenson responded no.

Ms Loucksstated that the problem Ms Stevenson has a scoming in a sare-licensee is she basically has to start from scratch with the license application process because she did not hold a license and was not practicing in the other state prior to coming to Florida so she did not qualify.

Ms Stevenson responded that she was practicing prior to coming to Florida.

M r. Chairm an questioned what the Board could do to help M s Stevenson. M r. Chairm an stated that the Board would have an answer for M s Stevenson later in the meeting.

B. Recommended for Consideration

1. Funeral Director and Embalmer-Internship a. Cohen, Thomas J

Ms Evansstated that the applicant answered "Yes" to Section 9, in Crim inal History Questions-"Have you, the applicant herein, everplead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regard less of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below:"

Da te :	9/20/2004
Location:	Ya va pa i County, Arizona
Case #	CR20040417
0 ffense :	Driving Under the Influence, Possession for sale of Marijuana
Pled :	Guilty to DUI of being im paired to the slightest degree, other charges dism issed
Sentence:	30d ays House Arrest, Fines & Fees \$3505, 1 Year Unsupervised Probation
	(Red wed to 6M onths)
Dianaditio	

Disposition: Guilty

Col. Ballas questioned whether Mr. Cohen paid the fine of 3505 and whether the probation was reduced to 6m on ths

Mr. Thom as JCohen responded yes

MOTION: Col Ballasm oved to approve the application. Mr. Baxley second ed the motion, which passed with 3 d issenting votes

b. 0 utwater; GaryA

Ms Evansstated that the applicant answered "Yes" to Section 9, in Crim inal History Questions-"Have you, the applicant here in, everplead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regard less of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florid a or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below:" Mr. Outwater previously held a Funeral Director and Embalm erlicense with the State of Florida.

Date:9/29/2008Location:Duval CountyCase #2008-MM -516100 ffense:Trespass; Contempt of Court

Pled : Nolo Contend re; Guilty

Sentence: 2 Days Incarceration; Costs \$153; Second Charge, 2 Days Concurrent Disposition: Guilty

Da te :	11/162008
Location:	DuvalCounty
Case #	2008-M M - 563114
0 ffense :	PT N ot Specified ; Contem pt of Court
Pled :	N olo Contend re; Guilty
Sentence:	30 Days Incarceration (2 Days Cred it); Second Charge, 2 Days Concurrent
Disposition	n: Guilty
Da te :	1/62004
Location:	DuvalCounty
Case #	2004MM-816
0 ffense :	Petit Theft, Contem pt of Court
Pled :	N olo Contend re; Guilty
Sentence:	30 Days Incarceration (2 Days Cred it); Second Charge, 2 Days Incarceration
	(2 Days Cred it)
Dignoition	

Disposition: Guilty

Da te :	
Location:	Duval County
Case #	2005-M M -8728
Offense:	Trespass0ccup
Pled :	Guilty
Sentence:	10 Days Incarceration (2 Days Cred it)
Disposition	:: Guilty

Da te :	6/11/2005
Location:	Duval County
Case #	2005-M M - 1992O
0 ffense :	PT-First Degree
Pled :	N olo Contend re
Sentence:	12 M onths Incarceration (12 Days Cred it); Costs \$230 M a trix House
	Program with EarlyRelease upon Completion
Disposition	n: Guilty

Ms Thom as DeWitt stated that although Mr. Outwater was a licensed funeral director, he does not meet the criteria based on today standard sand Mr. Outwater did not take the National Exam.

MOTION: Ms Thom as DeWittm oved to denythe application. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed with 3d issenting votes

XX. Application(s) for Funeral Director and Embalmer Intern

- A. Recommended for Approval See Addendum H
 - 1. Collazo, Catherine E

Ms Evanspresented the application(s) for Funeral Director and Embalmer Intern.

MOTION: Mr. Jones moved to approve the application(s). Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Consideration 1. Lusco, Eugene

Ms Evansstated that the applicant answered "Yes" to Section 7, in Crim inal History Questions-"Have you, the applicant herein, everplead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regard less of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regard ing any crime indicated below:"

Date:622/2002Location:DuvalCase #2002-MM-0800000 ffense:Violation of Injunction for ProtectionPled :N o ContestSentence:Fine \$153; First Step ProgramDisposition:Adjudication Withheld

MOTION: Mr. Helm moved to approve the application. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXI. Application(s) for EnbalmerApprentice

A. Recommended for Approval – See Addendum H

- 1. Aniks, Merland
- 2. Comelison, Krystal M
- 3. Costine, Harold S
- 4. Green, Joshua I
- 5. Howard, Cynthia B
- 6 Rose, Mitchell J
- 7. Washington, Thomas C
- 8. Waters Marilyn L
- 9. Wilson, Daniel B

Ms Evanspresented the application(s) for Embalmer Intern.

MOTION: Mr. Helm moved to approve the application(s). Ms Thomas DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXII. Continuing Education Course Approval(s)

- A. Recommended for Approval See Addendum I
 - 1. ArcMesa Elucators #0001277
 - 2. CANA-Cremation Association of North America #0001426
 - 3. Florida Funeral Directors Association #0001395
 - 4 Florida Morticians Association #0004161
 - 5. Funeral CEW eb CE #0008221
 - 6 Funeral Review.com #0001783
 - 7. International Cemetery, Cremation & Funeral Association #0001415

MKJM arketing #0001419
 National Funeral Directors Association #0001441
 Pinellas County Funeral Home Association #0008751

Ms Evanspresented the courses for approval.

M r. Clay Roberson stated the Florida Funeral Directors Association would be having its annual convention July 11-14 in West Palm Beach. The provider was approved for 11 and denied the 1 hour for the trade show. There will be 45 funeral service and cemetery vendors. For 1 hour, the attendees would have to go around to each booth and have the vendor explain their product in order to receive credit. This has been done for the past 5-7 years and has been approved.

Mr. Baxleystated that he and Ms Peepleswere the 2 out 3 to deny the hour. Ms Peepleshas the most experience with the approvals from the past of the other Board. Mr. Baxleystated that he was under the impression that this was a precedence thing and was not aware that this has been done in the past. It would be appropriate for the Board to vote on it. Mr. Baxleystated that he would not oppose if there was a definite way of tracking that the attendees had spent the appropriate time.

MOTION (#5): Mr. Jones moved to approve the application to include 1 hour approval for trade show. Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

ITEM NOTON AGENDA

Ms Evansstated that it has been brought to her attention that the Florid a Morticians Association #0004161 has not completed all requirements to be come a provider. Therefore, the course sthat are currently to be approved for them would not be valid for a provider that did not renew.

Mr. Chairm an questioned whether there was a deficiency in the application.

Ms Evansstated that there was a deficiency. The funds may not have been paid.

M r. Bernard M itchell stated that this information is new to the Association and requested that they be allowed to rectify this situation in order to be approved for the courses

M r. Chaim an questioned whether the Board would consider approval pending receipt of the fees and all documentation is accurate. This should be resolved by June 30th

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the request with the stipulation. Ms Thom as DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

Ms Evansstated that another provider, Alexander W ynn III, is requesting a pproval of 3 of the courses presented with the same instructor as funeral directors are planning to take the course this summer to get their funeral license. The provider has submitted applications for 'The Futility of Fighting Evolution', 'Embalming Restorative Art' and 'HIV/AIDS: The Beginning, The Middle and The Future.' The courses were submitted with the same instructor and curriculum.

Mr. Chaimman questioned whether Alexander Wynn III is a provider.

Ms Evansresponded yes, Provider #0008678.

MOTION: Ms Thom as DeWittm oved to approve the request. Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

MOTION (1-2, 4-10): Mr. Helm moved to approve the application(s). Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXIII. ConsumerProtection Trust Fund Claims A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum J

Ms Evanspresented the claim sfor approval.

MOTION: Ms Thom as DeWittm oved to approve the claims Ms Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Consideration

1. American FamilyCremation Society(Beneficiary, Benjamin Midgley)

Ms Evansstated that the following Consumer Protection Trust Fund Proof of Claim and Disbursement Request are being presented to the Board for consideration.

Purchaser.	M id g le y, Benjam in
Be ne fic ia ry:	M id g le y, Benjam in
Claim ant:	Gale Midgley
Contract Am ount:	\$ 495.00
Am ount Paid on Contract:	\$ 495.00
Am ount Disbursed :	\$ 000
Portion of payments ICS retained a snon-trust:	\$ 000
Am ount Requested :	\$495.00

On February 14, 1996 a preneed contract for Mr. Benjam in Midgley purported lywas purchased from American Family Cremation Society, Inc. in the amount of \$49500 Mrs Midgley, the next of kin confirmed that the contract was paid in full to a representative of American Family Cremation Society, Inc. Mr. Benjam in Midgley passed away on December 28, 2006 On or about January 4, 2007, Mrs Midgley purchased an at-need contract from American Family Funerals & Cremations, Inc. in the amount of \$62000

American Family Cremation Society, Inc. went out of business and the AtPeace Cremation Society (APCS) purchased the contracts from Charles Stutts, Receiver.

M rs M idgley is now seeking restitution from the Pre-need Funeral Contract Consumer Protection Trust Fund. All necessary documents have been enclosed for your review.

It should be noted that the claim ant could not provide a copy of the breached contract, but d id provide a copy of the American Fam ily Crem ation Society, Inc. Pre-Arrangement Identification Card as proof that Mr. Midgley did have a contract with American Fam ily Crem ation Society, Inc.

Additionally, there is no record of the above contract with FSI. This contract was one of the non-trusted preneed contracts written by American Family Cremation Society, Inc.

Mr. Helm questioned whether the 2 companies were one in the same.

Ms Evansresponded no, sim ilar nam esbut different com panies Ms Evans stated that the issue is she d id not have a copy of her contract.

Mr. Chairm an questioned whether it was routine for American Family Cremation Society to do an unfunded prearrangement and get an identification card. Mr. Chairm an stated that his concern is that there is no proof and no contract with FSI.

Ms Evansstated that American Fam ilyCremation Society was head quartered in Lakeland. This was a company that grew tremendously. It opened up, received its license and sold hundred sand thousand sof contracts statewide over the period of about 1.5 years. It came to the Department's attention that monies were not being trusted, so an audit was conducted. The first year audit seemed okay. Over the next 6 months, there were a lot of shortages. It was ultimately determined that he owner had stolen about \$1 million of insurance premium sand about \$400,000 of trust deficits. In all of the claim shonored, there has neverbeen evidence that some one received an id card but did not get and payfor a contract. American Fam ily Cremation Society collected the money, but did not turn it into FST strust or the insurance company. Or they turned in \$5, or just enough to show that there was an active contract, into FST for trust, and kept the rest.

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to denythe request. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

2. Shores Funeral Home (Beneficiary, Helen Flammia)

Ms Evansstated that the following Consumer Protection Trust Fund Proof of Claim and Disbursement Request are being presented to the Board for consideration.

Purchaser.	Flammia, Helen
Be ne fic ia ry:	Flammia, Helen
Claim ant:	Helen Salvo
ContractAmount	\$4,75000
Am ount Paid on Contract:	\$4,75000
Am ount Disbursed :	\$ 2,673.30
Portion of payments ICS retained a snon-trust:	\$ 000
Am ount Requested :	\$ 2,07670

On March 22, 1995, a preneed contractfor M s Helen Flamm ia waspurchased by herniece M s Lynn Salvo from Shores Funeral Home (Frostproof) in the amount of \$4,750.00 Shore Funeral Home, Inc. has since gone out of business M s Salvo, as next of kin confirmed that the contract was paid in full and fund swere trusted by FSI. M s Helen Flamm ia passed away on January 14, 2007. On January 15, 2007, M s Salvo purchased an at-need contract from W hitfield Funeral Home, Inc. in the amount of \$878.00 M s Salvo's paperwork was destroyed during 2008 hurricane season (Charlie). W hitfield Funeral Home, Inc. received \$2,673.30 from FSI trust balance. The trust was used to pay for the at-need services in the amount of \$878.00 and the difference was refunded to M s Salvo in the amount of \$1,795.00

Ms Salvo is now seeking restitution from the Pre-need Funeral Contract Consumer Protection Trust Fund for the remaining balance of hera unt's Shores Funeral Home (Frostproof) contract. All necessary documents have been enclosed for your review. It should be noted that the claim ant could not provide a copy of the breached contract. A copy was obtained from FSI as proof that M s Flam m ia did have a contract with Shore Funeral Home.

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the amount recommended by Staff. Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXIV. Contractsor0 therRelated Forms

- A. Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) (Tallahassee)
 - 1. Preamanged Funeral Agreement Guaranteed
 - 2. Preamanged Fumeral Agreement Non-Guaranteed

Form FLIN GO1 20070701 - Guaranteed

The agreement was received by the Department on May 18, 2007. The agreement is to be used in conjunction with life insurance policies issued by Funeral Directors Life Insurance Company. The agreement will be used exclusively by funeral homes that are clients of Funeral Services. Inc. There are no outstanding deficiencies

Form FLIN GO1 2007/07/01 – N on-Guaranteed

The agreement was received by the Department on May 18, 2007. The agreement is to be used in conjunction with life insurance policies issued by Funeral Directors Life Insurance Company. This agreement is identical to the Guaranteed agreement with the exception of Section IX – Term sand Conditions 1. - No Price Guarantee. Current retail prices will be charged at the time good sand services are provided. The Department presents the agreement to the Board for discussion and consideration. There are no outstanding deficiencies

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION: Ms Zippaym oved to approve the contract. Ms Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

B. Lake CityWilbert Vault, Inc. (Lake City)

1. Monument Establishment Retail Sales Agreements Memorial Contract, Bronze Memorial Contract, Addendum

Ms Evansstated that the agreements are submitted in compliance with Section 497.553, Florida Statutes, that requires monument establishment sales agreement form she filed with and approved by the Board.

Staff recommend sapproval of the agreementspending Department receipt within 45d ays of two printready agreements with the following revisions

- ?? Name, addressand telephone number of interment right owner (if different from purchaser)
- ?? Disclosure that the memorial ormarker meets all of the cemetery's rules and regulations as of the date of the contract
- ?? Lot, block or section number of grave (if to be delivered to a cemetery) or memorial location

MOTION: Ms Zippa ym oved to approve the agreementspending Department receipt within 45d ays of two print-read yagreements with noted revisions. Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXV. TrustAgreement(s)

A. Regions Bank (Houston, TX)

1. MasterFlorida Preneed Funeral Trust Agreement

M s Evansstated that this trust agreem ent is sub mitted by Regions Bank, form erlyN ational Fiduriary Services N.A. At the October 16 2008 meeting, the Board approved the Master Florida Preneed Funeral Trust Agreem ent of N ational Fiduriary Services This agreem ent is substantially the same as the previously approved, reflecting the change of name to Regions Bank.

Staff recommend sapproval of the agreement.

MOTION: Mr. Jones moved to approve the agreement. Ms Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2. MasterFlorida CemeteryCare & Maintenance Trust Agreement

M s Evansstated that this trust agreem ent is sub mitted by Regions Bank, form erlyN ational Fiduriary Services N.A. At the October 16 2008 meeting, the Board approved the Master Florida Preneed Funeral Trust Agreem ent of N ational Fiduriary Services This agreem ent is substantially the same as the previously approved, reflecting the change of name to Regions Bank.

Staff recommend sapproval of the agreement.

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to approve the agreement. Ms Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXV I. Trust Transfer(s)

A. Kent Care of Florida, LLC (Tallahassee)

- 1. Preneed Trust Transfer—Forethought Federal Savings Bank Florida Preneed Master Trust Agreement to Regions Bank Master Florida Preneed Funeral Trust Agreement.
- 2. CemeteryCare & Maintenance Trust Transfer—Forethought Federal Savings Bank Perpetual Care & Maintenance Trust Agreement to Regions Bank Master Florida CemeteryCare & Maintenance Trust Agreement.

Ms Evansstated that the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the preneed trust funds of Kent Care of Florida, LLC from Fore thought Federal Savings Bank Florida Preneed Master Trust Agreem ent and, care & maintenance trust funds from Fore thought Federal Savings Bank Perpetual Care Master Trust Agreem ent Kent Care of Florida, LLC, Inc. was approved at the February 7, 2007 Board meeting for acquisition of Abbey-Riposta Funeral Home and Tallahassee Memory Gardenscemetery.

The approval of these transfersiscontingent upon the approval of the Regions Bank Preneed and Care and Maintenance Trust agreem entapplications that appear on this agenda.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION: MsThomas-DeWittmoved to approve the request. Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXV II. Administrative Report

The Administrative Report was submitted to the Board on the Agenda.

XXV III. Disciplinary Report

	Issued Since Last Meeting (April 11, 2007)	Issued Since January 1, 2007
N otice of N on-Compliance	0	1
Lettersof Guidance	3	7
Citations	0	0

Probable Cause Panel B-April 5, 2007

Cases	Cases	Probable Cause	N o Probable	Ad d itional Info	Guidance Letter	
Re viewed	W ithd rawn	Find ing s	Cause Findings	Requested	in Lieu of PC	Dism issed
5	0	5	0	0	0	0

Probable Cause Panel A - May 25, 2007

		1 100 ab.				
Cases	Cases	Probable Cause	N o Probable	Ad d itional Info	Guidance Letter	
Re viewed	W ithd rawn	Find ing s	Cause Findings	Requested	in Lieu of PC	Dism issed
6	0	4	0	0	0	2

XXIX. Finance Committee Report (0 ral)

Ms Evansstated that the Committee meton June 26th and reviewed the request by the Department to evaluate renewal fees of all license types The Division still has the issue of the 10 positions that were granted by the Legislature but are being held abeyance due to lack of recurring revenue, which according to the Governor's office is renewal fees. In order to request that the Governor's office approve the activation of the 10 positions the Division would have to show that there were sufficient fund sin renewal feesto support the salary dollarsneeded. The analysis reflects that there is an excess of \$332,000 for this purpose. There was a shortfall needed of approxim ately \$155,000 The Committee suggested making the recommendation to change a couple of rules. A specific rule to be changed would be to increase the amount paid by preneed licenses per preneed contract from \$4 per preneed contract to \$6 per preneed contract, which would bring in approxim a tely \$150,000 of additional revenue. The Committee also recommended a legislative change, to be presented as a part of the legislative packet for next year, to suspend the requirement in the law that limited the Board in Consumer Protection Trust Fund rem ittances Rightnow the law states that the Board can reduce the amount to the trust fund, since it is over \$1 m illion, to no less than \$1 per contract. The suggestion was made to elim in a te that altoge ther and leave the Board with the authority so if there happens to be a large am ount of claim sto the fund or if som ething bad happens, at the Board senacting of a rule, payments to the trust fund would resume. This decision and suggestion was made because there is \$69m illion in this trust fund. Over the last 4 years the average am ountpaid outper year is approximately \$50,000 - \$55,000 which is less than 1%. It did not seem necessary to have so much money in a protection fund that is not been used when money is needed in a separate fund for staffing to provide better regulation and better enforcement.

MOTION: Col. Ballasmoved to approve the recommendation. Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

Ms Corinne O lvey questioned whether the Board approved the recommendation to be forwarded to Rules Committee for a Rule or whether the increase is being approved right now.

Ms Evansresponded that the increase was approved and would be effective by the rule promulgation. XXX. Chairman's Report (0 ral)

Mr. Chairm an stated that the next meeting would be a Teleconference on July 10th.

ITEM PREVIOUSLYDISCUSSED

XV. Application(s) for Preneed License D. Navarro Funeral Homes, LLC (Doral)

Mr. W illiam stated that the financials are in accordance with GAAP and there is a positive networth of \$45,000 Also, there was a typo on the application the applicant where applicant answered no when asked "Are you and any company with whom you are connected financially solvent?"

Mr: William srequested that the Board approve the application contingent upon the applicant submitting a revised application

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to approve the application contingent upon receipt of the revised docum entation. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Helm stated that all Board members are not accountants. Therefore information on financials should be presented to indicate whether or not the financial is acceptable. Also there should be something d one regarding the applicants whose networth is always negative.

M r. W illiam sstated that this is being worked on in one of the Finance subcomm ittees to suggest to the Department presenting a cover sheet to the Board members and are reviewing some of the financial obligations

Ms Evansstated that the Departmentwould amend the way the analysis is presented to disclose any history. The financial requirements rule states the minimum requirements along with a list of item sthat the Board may accept if the financial requirements are not met.

Ms Evansstated that the financial pictures of some of the applicants have improved but others have remained the same.

Ms Hubbell stated that in certain circum stances there probably would not be any change because the consideration being requested is the difference between what they paid for something years ago versus the equities that they have today. On a balance sheet, that would never change if you are complying with GAAP.

Ms Evansstated that she would like to work up some time of training session like Accounting 101 on what is GAAP, what the Department is looking for, current ratio, etc. Perhapstraining could take place at the beginning of the year prior to next year's renewal.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Prevatt questioned whether he should wait until after lunch to see whether his PN L renewal has been approved.

 $M\,s\,$ Evans stated that $M\,r.$ Prevatt submitted documentation, but it is unclear whether everything was included .

Mr. Chairm an stated that the Board has not had time to review the information. The application was a lread y approved contingent upon the Department's review of the submission.

Ms Arguin stated that she would get with Mr. Prevattand Mr. Gellepistom orrow to resolve the issue.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Hazlip questioned whether the term sof the applicants for preneed licensure would begin now or July 1^{4} .

Ms Evansresponded July 1st.

XXXI. AttomeyReport (0 ral)

ITEM PREVIOUSLY DISCUSSED

XIX. Application(s) for Florida Laws and Rules Examination

A. Recommended for Approval - Addendum G

- 1. Funeral Director and Embalmer- Internship
 - j. Stevenson, Patricia A

Ms Loucksstated that Ms Stevenson should check with Ms Evansto determ ine whether the internship application could be amended to whatever application is needed. The Statute states that the Department has to charge a nonrefundable fee. Ms Loucks questioned whether the Department considers a nonrefundable fee a nontransferable fee. Ms Loucks questioned whether Ms Stevenson would be allowed to amend her application to the correct application and allow her to pay the difference be tween whatever the application fee would be. This would be the only action the Board would have to take. The application would then need to be reviewed to ensure Ms Stevenson has com plied with all of the requirements

MOTION: Mr. Baxleym oved to transfer the fee. Ms Zippayseconded the motion, which passed unanim ously.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Roberson stated that the Association has received lots of calls from funeral directors around the State regarding the change in license numbers

Ms Evansstated that this would be addressed under the Executive Director's report.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Davisstated there have been lots of instances where renewal notices have been m ailed to old addresses and old names Mr. Davisstated that his wife's information is correct on her license and if searching for her through the Division's webpage, but when you go to her renewal it pulls up her old name and a location that she has not lived at for 10 years. There may be other renewals that d id not go to the updated addresses on the webpage. Mr. Davis added that he was advised that his wife would have to submit all new paperwork to have this information changed. Ms Evansstated that if the website has the correct name and address and the renewal notice did not, then the renewal notice must have been printed from a wrong database.

Mr. Davisstated that he was told it was printed from DBPR, but they have the current name. Mr. Davis presented the information to Ms Evans

Mr. Davisadded that the computer system indicates that he does not have a license. Therefore he has been out of compliance for the last 14 years

XXXII. Executive Director's Report (0 ral) A. Report from Richard Baldwin – Examiner for Menorah Gardens February' OV - March 'OV

The Board members received copies of reports from Richard Bald win for the months of February '07–March '07. Mr. Bald win continues to assist consumers

B. Staffing Report

Ms Evansstated that there are 2 vacancies Financial Exam iner Supervisor – Tallahassee and Financial Exam iner/Analyst I – Tam pa.

C. Update on Computer Project

Ms Evansstated that there are obvious glitches in the computer system, which was deployed on June 4th. Some of the glitches were worked out as soon as they were identified. Please advise of any snafus or thing sthat are wrong. Ms Evans stated that she is aware of the problem with continuing education credits been posting and the problem with the renewal addresses

D. Update on Legislation

Ms Evansstated that legislation wassigned by the Governor on May 22^{nd} . It was a relatively small Bill, but d id a couple of thing stratare pretty important. HIV /Aid scourse isonly required for renewal once every third biennial renewal.

Mr. Chaim an stated if the course was taken for the 'O5 renewal, it is not required for the 'O7 renewal. This does not include direct disposers. This only applies to funeral directors and embalmers

Ms Evansstated that also included in the Bill was the prohibition that if there is an interest in a hospital, assisted care facility, nursing home, hospice or the like, you would not qualify for a funeral establishment license.

Ms Evansadded that there was also a provision that allows for the crem ated remains of petstobe interred in the same casket with a person. Every cemetery is not required to allow this Rules Committee would need to add ress some issues as to record keeping requirements for the interment of pet remains along with a few other issues

E Sad News

Ms Evansannounced the death of Mr. EarlQuattlebaum.

Mr. Chairman stated that Mr. Quattlebaum was on the original Cemetery Board many years ago. Mr. Quattlebaum was certainly considered a leader and pioneer in funeral service in Florida, who leaves behind quite a family that is carrying on the Quattlebaum tradition. Mr. Quattlebaum will be deeply missed.

Ms Evansadded that Mr. Quattlebaum was one of the first Board members

XXX. Adjournment

At 1:48 p.m., the meeting was adjourned.